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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the shareholders of Hungarian Export-Import Bank Limited Private Company
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hungarian Export-Import Bank
Limited Private Company (“the Bank™), which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 31 December 201], the statements of comprehensive income, changss in equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Meanagement’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
EU, and for such internal comtrol as management deiermines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion con these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presemanon of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

EPRG Fhongdria E15, a Hungaidan limited liabiily company and
amambe jirm o the KFMG nelworl: of independent member

o afliated wilh KPMG international Cooperative

I"KPIG Intermalional "), a Swiss enlity,
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of (or ‘present fairly, in all
material respects,’) the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2011, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU.

Budapest, 13 April 2012

KPMG Hungéria Kfi.

i/

Agics Gabor
Partner




HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 3] DECEMBER 2011
(Al amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

Cash, due from banks and balances with the National
Bank of Hungary

Loans and advances to other banks, net of impairment
losses

Loans and advances to customers, net of impairment
losses

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets, net of inipairment
loss

Intangibles, property and equipment. net

Other assets, net

Total Assets

Loans and deposits from other banks

Fmancial liabifities at fair value through profit or loss
Provision for guarantees and contingencies

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Share capital
Reserves

Total Sharcholder’s Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

13 April 2012

Authorised for 1ssue by

-
f .

'\‘_—"'L:_;—Jm-—--,-r" 3
Katafin @”Argrﬁx
Chief Executive Officer

Note

10

12

11
13

14
14

2011 2010
162 67
128,893 107,469
54,589 66,912
Y 618
11,088 17,621
176 188
826 904
195,781 193,779
175,696 173,884
1,407 1,074
21 1,121

992 614
178,116 176,693
10,100 10,100
7.565 6,986
17,665 17,086
195,781 193,779

The accompanying notes (o the Nnancial stalements on pages 7-68 Torm an integra? parl of these linancial stalements.



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] DECEMBER 2011

(Al amountis stated in HUF million uiless otherwise noted)

Note 2011 2010

Interest income 17 10,849 10,348
Interest expense 17 (6,230 (4,523)
Net interest income 4,619 5,825
Net income from fees and commissions 18 186 167
Provisions and impairment (losses)/reversal 11 {452) (1,855)
Gains and losses from trading and investment :

aclivities, net 19.1 (756) 30
Operating expenses : 19.2 {3,027) (3,322)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 570 1,445
Income taxes 16 £36) {235)
Profit /(}oss) for the period 534 1,210
Other comprehensive income
Fair value adjustment of available-for-sale
securiies, net of tax 20 45 {(279)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net
of income tax 45 (279)
Toial comprehensive income for the period 579 931

13 April 2012

Authorised Tor 1ssue by

-~
-

o

[,

Katahn M

(I N

[i

/

L
TS

Chicf Exdeutive Officer

Che accompanying nates o the linancial stalements on pages 7-68 Tarm an integral part of these Nnancial statements.



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before income taxes

Note

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation

Provision charged /(released) for impairment losses
{Profit)/loss from revalnation to fair value
Difference between impairment loss of a loan and the

fair valne of the collateral received in exchange for it

Net interest income
Interest received
Interest paid
Income taxes
Dividend paid
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances to other
banks, before impairment losses
Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances to
customers, before impairment fosses
Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Net (increase)/decrease in available-for-sale financial
assets
Net (increase)/decrease in other assets
Net increase/(decrease) other liabilities
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net (increase)/decrease in held-to-maturity securities
Purchases of intangibles, property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from due to banks and deposits from banks
Repayment of due to banks and deposits from banks
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase/(decrease} in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

19.2
11
7

11

16

10
13

12
12

2011 2010
570 1,445

99 197
1,552 853
315 2,276

- (1,800)
(4,619) (5,825)
11,632 10,418
(6,994) (5,109)
(36) (235)
(21,104) 16,076
12,527 11,240
589 3,051
5,422 (9,116)
(838) 304
(645) 675
(1,530) 24,450
87) (61)
(87) (61)
414,378 307,882
(412,666)  (332,241)
1,712 (24,359)
95 30

67 37

162 67

The accompanying notes to the finencial statements on pages 7-68 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE1l. GENERAL INFORMATION

Hungarian Export-Import Bank Private Limited Company (“Eximbank”, the "Bank™} was
established on 26 May 1994 as the legal successor of the Export Guarantee Corporation. The
legal status and the activities of the Bank are regulated by Act XLII of 1994 on the
Hungarian Export-Import Bank Ltd. and the Hungarian Export Credit Insurance Ltd. (“Act
on Eximbank™). Eximbank’ s primary business goal is to promote Hungarian exports by
granting loans and guarantees.

The Bank’s address is Nagymezd St. 46-48., H-1065 Budapest, Hungary.

Eximbank — as a 100 % state owned company — was controlled by the Hungarian National
Asset Management Company, the successor of the State Privatisation and Holding Company
(APV Rt) between 1 January 1999 and 15 December 2004. On 15 December 2004, APV Rt.
sold 75 % less one share (and voting rights) of Eximbank to the Hungarian Development
Bank Ltd. according to the rules of paragraph 138 (4) of Act XLVIIT of 2004 on Financial
Services and the respective Government Decree no. 2186/2004 (VIL.22)).

Since 17 June 2010 Eximbank has been controlled solely by the Hungarian Development
Bank Ltd. in accordance with the paragraph 12 (1) of Act LII on accountable management of
state owned properties.

Therefore the Hungarian Development Bank Pte Ltd. — having its registered office at Nador
St. 31., H-1051 Budapest, Hungary — is the Bank’s parent company. The Bank is included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Hungarian Development Bank Ltd. for the
years ending 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010. In both years the ultimate parent of
the Bank is the Hungarian State.

NOTE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Bank are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘TFRSs”) as adopted by the EU.,

IFRSs comprise accounting standards issued by the IASB and its precedessor body and
interpretations tssued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commiittee
(*IFRIC") and its precedessor body.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Chief Executive Officer on 13
April 2012, These financial statements are not intended to ke wsed for statutory filing
purposes.



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
following:

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value,

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value,

Other financial instruments are measured at amortised cost.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make certain judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from
these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgements in applying accounting policies that have the mest significant effect on the
amount recegnised in the financial statements are described in Note 27.

23 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Hungarian Forints (‘HUF), which is the Bank’s
fonctional currency. Except as indicated, financial information presented in Hungarian
Forints has been rounded to the nearest million (MHUF).

24 Reclassifications

Where necessary, certain amounts in prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the
current presentation.



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(Al amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices
adopted by the Bank in preparing and presenting financial statements. The accounting
policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

3.1 Financial statement presentation

These financial statements for years 2011 and 2010 include the accounts of Eximbank.
3.2 Financial instruments

Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset, a financial liability or equity is classified as a
financial instrument. All financial instruments are initially recognised at their fair values in
the Bank's statement of financial position when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual
agreement (at trade date). Initial fair values represent given or received considerations and
all transaction costs. In case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs are charged to profit or loss. Regular way' purchases or sales of financial assets arc
recognised using trade date accounting,

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instruments are measured by specific valuation
principles disclosed at each relevant category of financial assets and financial liabilities
below.

Financial assets are derecognised when the Bank loses the right te receive cash flow from the
related asset, loses rewards and risks related to the asset or loses the confrol over the
contractual rights of the financial assets (at (rade date). Financial liabilities are removed from
the Bank's statement of financial position when they are extinguished, repaid or expire.

3.3 Determination of fair values

A number of the Bank’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair
value for financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement
and / or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. In the normal course of
business, the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is the transaction price
(that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received),




HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in
active markets are measured at fair value based on bid prices for assets held and ask prices
for liabilities issued. When independent prices are not available, fair value is determined by
using valuation techniques which refer to observable market data. These include comparison
with similar instruments where market observable prices exist, discounted cash flow
analysis, and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

For financial instruments, fair value may be determined in whole or in part using valuation
techniques based on assumptions that are not supported by prices from current market
transactions or observable market data. Determination of fair values is more detailed in Note
28.

34 Cash, due from banks and balances with the National Bank of Hungary

Cash, due from banks and balances with the National Bank of Hungary include notes and
coins on hand, unresiricted balances held with central banks and highly liquid financial
assets with original maturity of less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk
of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management of its short-term
commitments.

These items are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash, due from
banks and short term balances with National Bank of Hungary with original maturities of
three months or less.

35 Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Trading debt and equity instruments, are generally held for the short term in anticipation of
market gains and resale, and are measured initially at their fair values, with transaction costs
taken to profit or loss. Subsequently, their fair values are remeasured and all gains and losses
on these instruments are recognised in profit or loss under ‘Gains and losses from trading
and investment activities’.

Debt and equity instruments held for trading are reported as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Interest earned on debt securities is reported as interest income, and
dividends earned on equity instruments are taken to ‘Gains and losses from trading and
investment activities” when declared. Interest payable on such securities is reported as
interest expense.

The Bank uses foreign currency exchange contracts for economic hedging purposes,
however, hedge accounting according to IAS 39 is not applied. These contracts include cross
currency interest rate swaps confracted with the parent company. All derivative financial
instruments are carried at fair value. All gains and [osses on these instruments are recognised
in ‘Gains and losses from trading and investment activities.

10



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(Al amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.6 Available-for-sale debt and equity instruments

Investments (not at fair value through profit or loss) in debt securities are classified either
as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity. Investments in secutities are classified as
available-for-sale when, in management's judgement, they may be sold in response to or in
anticipation of changes in market conditions, unless they are considered to be part of
trading-related activities. These securities are initially measured at their fair values plus
direct and incremental transaction costs. Subsequently, their fair values are remeasured and
changes therein are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented within equity
in ‘Fair value reserve’ until the securities are sold or impaired. When these securities are
sold, cumulative gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
taken to profit or loss as ‘Gains and losses from trading and investment activities’.

Interest income on debt securities, including amortisation of premiums and accretion of
discounts, are reported as interest income. Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest rate method.

Equity investments (not at fair value through profit or loss) represent shares held in certain
companies in order to benefit in terms of banking relationships. These equity mvestments
are classified as available-for-sale. Equity investments for which no fair values are
available are stated at cost. Dividend income on securities is faken to ‘Gains and losses
from trading and investment activities” when declared. The specific identification method
disclosed below is used to determine realised gains and losses generated from sales of
securities, which are reported in securities gains or losses on a net basis.

3.7 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

Debt securities that the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity and carried at amortised cost on the statement of financial
position. Premiums are amortised and discounts are accumulated against net profit using the
effective interest rate method. On the basis of the management decision the held-to-maturity
category is currently not applied.

38 Loans and advances to banks and customers

Loans and advances to banks and customers are classified as Loans and receivables. Loans
are reported at the principal amount outstanding, net of impairment and unearned income.
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method for all toans other than
impaired loans.



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
39 Impairment of financial assets

39.1 Impairment of loans and advances to banks and customers

At each balance sheet date the Bank assesses whether there is objective evidence that loans
and advances are impaired. Loans and advances are impaired when objective evidence
demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that
the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on the asset that can be estimated
reliably.

Objective evidence that loans and advances are impaired can include default or delinguency
by a botrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the Bank would
not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

Impairment allowances are calculated for all loans individually. Increases in loan impairment
are charged to profit or loss for the period. The carrying amount of impaired loans on the
reporting date is reduced through the use of impairment allowance accounts.

Reversals of impairment

If in a subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occwring after the write-down, loan impairment are reversed
through profit or loss.

Write-off of loans and advances

Bad loans are not written off against the related provisions until the conclusion of the
liquidation process or until considered to be legally uncollectible as set out under statutory
regulations. Subsequent recoveries are credited to profit or loss if previously written off,

Assets acquired in exchange for loans

During 2010 several securities were acquired in exchange for loan and relating interest
receivable fo a foreign bank within a restructuring plan due to the financial difficultics of the
client. The securitics were issued by the client. More details of the loan and securities are
presented in Note 5 on Loans and advances to other banks and Note 8 on Available for sale
financial assets, respectively.

3.9.2 Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

Investments in available-for-sale securities are considered to be impaired if their carrying
amount is greater than the estimated recoverable amount assessed at each balance sheet date
on the basis of objective evidence such as significant financial difficulty of the issuer,
actual breaches of contracts, high probability of bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization of the issuer. Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities are
recognised by transferring the cumulative foss that has been recognised in other
comprehensive income, and presented in the fair value reserve in equity, to profit or loss.
The cumulative loss that is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net ofany principal repayment



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(AUl amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

and amortisation, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security
increases and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, then the impairment loss is reversed, with
the amount of the reversal recognised in profit or loss. However, any subsequent recovery
in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity instrument is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

3.10 Statutory reserves
3.10.1 General risk reserve

Hungarian legislation allows the Bank to set aside amounts for general banking risks,
including future losses and other unforeseeable risks or contingencies, in addition to those
losses which have been specifically identified and those potential losses which experience
indicates are present in the credit portfolio. The Bank sets aside 1.00 % (2010: 1.00 %) of
risk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet exposures as at the reporting date. Such amounts
are separately disclosed as appropriation of retained eamings and are not included in the
determination of net profit or loss for the period.

3.10.2 General reserve

The the provisions of the Act CXII of 1996 on Credit Institutions and Financial Enterprises
(* Hungarian Banking Act”) prescribes that the Bank has to set a general reserve in the
amount of 10 % of the current year profit after tax figure, which will be eliminated to cover
the future losses. The Hungarian Banking Act also allows the Bank reclassify its retained
earnings into the general reserve. In 2011 the Bank reclassified HUF 1,005 million retained
earnings into the general reserve (2010: HUF 273 million).

The general reserve cannot be distributed as dividends.

3.11  Foreign currency translation

The Bank’s functional currency is the Hungarian Forint. Income and expenditure arising in
foreign currencies are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates
quoted by the National Bank of Hungary (“NBH") ruling at the end of the year. Resulting
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-menetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of histotical cost are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences
arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss, except for differences arising on the
refranslation of avatlable-for-sale equity investments.



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(Al ammounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

312 Intangibles, property and equipment

Intangibles, property and equipment are measured cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. In case
of property, plant and equipment cost of maintenance and repairs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred. Major improveiments and the cost of replacing a part of an item of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that
the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Bank and its cost can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Depreciation and amortisation are computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assels, based upon the following percentages:

I.easchold improvements 4.94 % to 48.69 %
Software 20 % to 50 %
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 14.5 % to 50 %

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-
end and adjusted if appropriate, Ttems of intangibies, property, plant and equipment are
subject to an impairment review if there are events or changes in circumstances which
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangibles, property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment, and are recognised net within “Other expenses” in profit or loss.

3.13 Income taxes

Income fax for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income,

Current tax is the calculated tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date as well as any adjustments fo tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet lability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences
are not provided for: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit and the general risk reserve (due to uncertainty of reversal).

14



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(Al amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 3. SUMMARY - OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

3.14  Inferest income and expense

Inferest income and expense for all financial instruments except for those classified as held
for trading are recognised in ‘Interest income” and ‘Interest expense” in profit or loss using

the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a way of calculating the
- amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability {(or groups of financial assets or
financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where
appropriate, a shorter period} to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The
effective interest rate is established on initial recognition or at repricing of the financial asset
and liability and is not revised subsequently. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) but not future credit losses. The calculation
includes all amounts paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of a financial asset or liability.

Interest income is recognised on available-for-sale securities using the effective interest rate
method, caleulated over the asset’s expected life.

3.15 Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability.

Contingent liabilities, which include certain guarantees, are possible obligations that arise
from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence, or non-
occuirence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Bank.
Such contingencies are guarantess and commitments to extend credit lines into which the
Bank enters in the ordinary course of business. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in
the financial statements but are disclosed unless the probability of settlement is remote.

The provision for possible losses on such commitments is maintained at a level adequate to
absorb probable future losses. Provision for possible losses is recognised only if the Bank
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

considers that it is more likely than not that a present obligation exists at the reporting date.
Management determines the adequacy of the provision based upon reviews of individual
items, recent loss experience, current economic conditions, the risk characteristics of the
various categories of transactions and other pertinent factors.

316  Segment reporting

Based on its organisational and management structure the Bank uses business segments as its
segment reports format, however the Bank also shows its assets, liabilitics and revenues by
geographical segments as additional information. Segment tevenue, expense, assets and
liabilities are allocated to the applicable segment on a consistent and reasonable basis,
including factors such as the nature of items and the conducted activities throughout on inter-
segment pricing process.




HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANKPTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 4. CASH, DUE FROM BANKS AND BALANCES WITH NATIONAL
BANK OF HUNGARY

2011 2010

Balances with NBH in HUTF 6 i
Due from banks in HUF l 2
Due from banks in foreign currency 155 64
Total 162 67

Based on the requirements for compulsory reserves set by the NBH, the amount of
compulsory reserves maintained by the Bank and included in the balance above amounted to
HUF 6 million and HUF 1 million as at 31 December 2011 and 2010, respectively. These
reserves earn interest at below market rates. '

NOTE 5. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO OTHER BANKS

2011 2010
Short-term placements

- in foreign currency 54,175 52,916

- in HUF 6,202 -
Sub-total 60,377 52,916

Long-term placements, in foreign currency 69,005 55,425
Sub-total 69,005 55,425

Total 129,382 108,341
Less: impairment losses (see Note 11) (489 (872)
Total 128,393 107,469

Loans and advances to other banks include refinancing loans disbursed.

A loan receivable from a foreign bank insured by Hungarian Expert Credit Insurance Ltd
(MEHIB) in amount of HUF 16,471 million (EUR 60,861,115.48) was assigned to MEHIB
due to default in 2010. Based on the agreement, MEHIB repays the loan and interest in
accordance with the same conditions as the original client. As of 31 December 2010 the
balance of the claim (including relating accrued interest) against MEHIB was HUF 13,914
million (EUR 49,917,428), while as of 31 December 2011 it was TIUF 12,944 million (EUR
41,604,224y .

Within a restructuring plan due to financijal difficulties, a loan - not insured by MEHIB —
and the interest due in the total amount of HUF 3,923 million (EUR 13,906,352.88) against
the same foreign bank was exchanged for debt securities and global depository receipts
issued by this bank and cash i the amount of USD 1,948,111 in 2010. The details of the
securities are presented in Note 8.

Information on the changes in the impairment losses relating to the above deals is presented
in Note 11.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTES5. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO OTHER BANKS (CONTINUED)
Remaining maturity of Loans and advances to other banks as at 31 December 2011 are as

follows.
Minimum and Maximum

Remaining Maturity Amount Fixed Interest Rates Effective Interest Rate
Placements in foreien currency:

1 to 7 days 772 1.02%-942% 2.98 %

8 to 30 days 22,918 09%-542% 1.24 %
31 to 90 days 5,878 0.5%-642% 2.56 %
91 to 180 days 7,284 0.5%-555% 2.61%
181 to 365 days 17,323 0.5%-9.42% 2.36 %

1 to 2 years 27,229 0.5%-942% 2.05%

2 to 5 years 34,770 05%-9.42% 2.66 %
Over 5 years 7,006 2.25%-542 % 2.29 %

Sub-total 123,180

Placements in HUF

1 to 7 days 6,202 6.0%-6.15% 6.12 %
Sub-total 6,202
Total 129,382

Remaining maturity of Loans and advances to other banks as at 31 December 2010 are as
follows.

Minimum and Maximum

Remaining Maturity Amount Fixed Interest Rates Effective Interest Rate
Placements in foreigh curency:

1 to 7 days 2,934 2,58 % -9.30% 497 %

8 to 30 days 18,836 0.8%-530% 1.08 %
31 to 90 days 6,775 0.75 % - 6.60 % 351%
91 to 180 days 8,136 276 % -5.55% 5.07%
181 to 365 days 16,235 2.61 % -9.30% 510%

1 to 2 years 24,142 355%-930% 5.10%

2 to 5 years 26,392 3.55%-9.30% 527 %
Over 3 years 4,891 4,70 % -5.55% 538 %

Sub-total 108,341

Placements in HUF

Sub-total -

Total 108,341
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 5. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO OTHER BANKS (CONTINUED)

The geographical breakdown of Loans and advances to other banks as at 31 December 2011
and 2010 are as follows.

Country 2011 2010
Hungary 127,393 103,830
Russia 1,183 2,744
Ukraine 411 515
Tajikistan 257 296
Belarus 79 I8
Turkey 59 -
Austria - 780
Iran - 58

Total 129,382 108,341

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, placement with other banks insured by the Hungarian
Export Credit Insurance Ltd. (MEHIB) amounted to HUF 827 million and 1,309 million,
respectively.



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE6. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, NET OF IMPAIRMENT

LOSSES
2011 2019
Short-term:
- in foreign currency 19,703 35,877
- in HUF 4,077 3,179
Sub-total 23,780 39,056
Long-term:
- in foreign currency 35518 32,050
- in HUF 141 183
Sub-total 35,659 32,233
Total 59,439 71,289
Less: impairment losses (see Note 11) (4,850) (4,377)
Total 54,589 66,912

The remaining maturity of loans and advances to customers as at 31 December 2011 are as
follows:

Minimum and Maximym Effective
Remaining Maturity Amount Fixed Interest Rates Interest Rate
In HUF:
1 to 7 days 2,396 0.00 % - 10.26% 4,34 %
8 to 30 days 109 9.79 % -9.79 % 9.79 %
31 to 90 days 1,049 0.00%-9.79% 9.58 %
91 to 180 days 10 0.00 % - 7.46 % 5.97%
181 to 365 days 513 0.00 % -10.43 % 10.30 %
| to 2 years 36 0.00% -7.46 % 5.57T%
2 to 5 years 86 0.00% -7.46 % 5.51%
Over 5 years 19 0.00 % -4.26 % 2.13%
Sub-total 4,218
In foreign currency:
1 to 7 days 2,306 141%-942% 4.40 %
8 to 30 days 484 3.08%-7.31% 3.60%
31 to 90 days 2,079 0.67% -8.62 % 4.30 %
91 to 180 days 6,543 0.69 % -9.42 % 4.59 %
181 to 365 days 8,291 0.67%-942 % 4.32%
1 to 2 years 11,739 0.67%-9.42 % 4.45%
2 to 5 years 14,758 0.67%-9.42 % 4.04 %
Over 5 years 9,021 0.67% -9.42 % 2.55%
Sub-total 55,221
Total 59,439

Non-interest bearing loans and advances include balances with staff and balances with
Hungarian State from interest compensation systems.




HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANKPTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 6. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS NET OF IMPAIRMENT
LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The remaining maturity of loans and advances to customers as at 31 December 2010 are as
follows:

Minimum and Maximum Effective

Remaining Maturity Amount Fixed Interest Rates Interest Rate

In HUF:
I to 7 days 1,399 0.00 % - 10.26% 7.10 %
8 to 30 days 62 935%-935% 9.35%
31 to 90 days 1,054 0.00% -9.35% 923 %
91 to 180 days 5 0.00% -5.00 % 2.50%
181 to 365 days 659 0.00% -9.35 % 8.88 %
1 to 2 years 30 0.00%-597% 4.12 %
2 to 5 years 110 0.00 % -5.97 % 4,74 %
Over 5 years 43 0.00 % -5.96 % 3.02%

Sub-total 3,362

In foreign currency:
1 to 7 days 9,412 1.41%-9.30% 4.98 %
& to 30 days 308 4.06%-6.59 % 5.04 %
31to 90 days 8,419 0.67% -9.30 % 3.42%
91 to 180 days 5,185 1.59 % -9.30 % 4.90 %
181 to 365 days 12,553 0.67% -9.30 % 4.20 %
1 to 2 years 10,320 0.67% -9.30 % 5.26 %
2 to 5 years 12,591 0.67%-9.30% 6.43 %
Over 5 years 9,139 0.67% -9.30 % 4.37 %

Sub-total 67,927
Total 71,289

Non-interest bearing loans and advances include balances with staff and balances with
Hungarian State from interest compensation systems.
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NOTE 6. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS NET OF IMPAIRMENT
LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The geographical breakdown of loans and advances to customers as at 31 December 2011
and 2010 are as follows,

Country . 2011 2010
Russia 25,723 40,012
Hungary 14,561 13,555
Montenegro 5,302 3,982
Poland 3,834 3,745
Laos 2,070 1,647
Egypt 1,557 618
Bosnia and Herzegovina 1,270 1,300
Ukraine 1,231 1,561
Turkey 1,120 1,836
Tajikistan 1,046 1,372
Romania 380 779
China 665 658
Serbia 111 104
Brazil 69 105
Tialy - 15

Total 59,439 71,289

Ag at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the loans insured by the Hungarian Export Credit
Insurance Ltd. (MEHIB) amounted to HUF 40,205 million and HUF 54,100 million
respectively.



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE7. TFINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010 are as follows:

2011 2010

Short-term derivative assets (trading):
Foreign exchange swap 47 65
Sub-total 47 65

Long-term trading assets:

Hungarian Government bonds in HUF - 553
Sub-total - 553
Total 47 618

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Short-term derivative liabilities (trading):
Cross currency interest rate swap 1,211 1,074
Foreign exchange swap 196
Total 1,407 1,074

The details of the cross currency interest rate swap for the year ended 31 December 2011 —
with Hungarian Development Bank Ltd - are shown below:

Contractual Receive notional ~ Receive notional Pay notienal Pay notional in
maturity in HUF million HUF miillion
11.11.2012 55,227,109 EUR 17,183 76,600,000 USD 18,436

The interest rates are 3-month EURIBOR + 2.5% p.a. and 3-month USD LIBOR + 2.5% p.a.
ot the SDR interest rates in the given currency shown on the web-site of ‘IMF SDR Interest
rate calculation’ + 2.45% p.a. + interest premium on the web-site of TMF SDR interest rate,
Rate of Remuneration, Rate of Charge and Burden Sharing Adjustments® (2011; 100 basis
points). The higher one of the interest rates calculated based on the two methods is to be
paid. The notional amounts are decreased quarterly by 8 equal instalments from 11 February
2011,

The fair value adjustments of Hungarian Government bonds and treasury bills as at 31
December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Cost - 589
Fair value adjustment - (36)
Book value - 553

e B



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE L.TD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

The remaining maturity of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 ,
December 2011 and 2010 are as follows. ’

Remaining Maturity 2011 2010
1-7 days 47 65
8-30 days - .
31-90 days - 553

91 to 180 days - -
181 to 365 days - -
1 to 2 years - -
2 to 5 years - -
Over 5 years - -
Total 47 618

As at 31 December 2011 the Bank has no Hungarian Government Bonds presented as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Remaining maturity of Hungarian Government bonds as at 31 December 2010 are detailed
below:

Minitmum and Maximum Effective Interest
Remaining Maturity Amount Interest Rates Rate
31-90 days 353 7.50% 7.50 %

Total 553



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 8. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

2011 2010
Hungarian discounied treasury bills in HUF - 16,182
Discounted bonds issued by National Bank of
Hungary in HUF 9,973 -
Hungarian Government bonds in HUF 788 -
Fair value adjustment 41) (30)
10,720 16,152
Senior Notes 1,151 1,151
Subordinated Notes 182 182
Recovery Units 131 131
Global Depository Receipts 59 59
Fair value adjustment - {(66)
Impairment loss (Note 11) (1,167) -
Securities acquired in exchange for loan 356 1,457
HUF shares 12 12
Fair value adjustment - -
12 12
Total 11,088 17,621

Details of the securities acquired in exchange for the loan mentioned in Note 5 are as
follows:

All securities were issued by a bank in Kazakhstan.

Principal amount of the Senior Notes at inception date as well as at year end is USD
4,753,250, Senior Notes are interest bearing debt instruments at the rate of 10.75% p.a. from
1 July 2010 to 1 January 2013 and 12.50 % p.a. thereafter. Interest is payable on the
outstanding principal amount in arrears on 1 January and 1 July in each year. Notes will be
redeemed in 8 equal semi-annuval instalments on 1 January and 1 July of each year, with the
first such instalment being payable on 1 January 2015 and the last being payable on 1 July
2018.

Principal amount of the Subordinated Notes at inception date as well as at year end is USD
1,077,004, Subordinated Notes are interest bearing debt instruments at the rate of 7.20 % p.a.
Interest is payable on the outstanding principal amount in arrears on 1 January and 1 July in
each year. Notes will be redeemed in 10 equal semi-annnal instalments on | January and 1
July of each year, with the first such instalment being payable on 1 January 2021 and the last
being payable on 1 July 2025,

The first interest payments of the Senior Notes and Suboerdinated Notes were due on 1
January 2011.

Principal amount of the Recovery Units at inception date as well as at year end is USD
9,819,745, Initial settlement date is 30 June 2020 and the deferred settlement date is 30 June
2022, The issuer shall make recovery payments pro rata to unit holders on 30 September, 31
December, 31 March and 30 June of each year, commencing 31 December 2010 provided
that certain conditions and circumstances set out in Trust Deed are fulfilled. During 2011 and
2010 no such payments were settled.

Global Depositary Receipts (GDRs) were issued, for no consideration, to the Restructuring
Creditors who are non-Kazakh residents. Each GDR represents 500 shares. GDR holders are
entitled to receive an amount of equivalent to any dividends or other proceeds payable on

25
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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NOTE 8. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) i

and have voting rights, or with respect to, the deposited shares corresponding to its GDRs.
Eximbank holds 23,002 units of GDRs. The price of each unit was USD 12,

The securities above are valued at their fair value based on the market price information
provided by the custodian. The fair values of the securities at inception date and at year end
of 2011 and 2010 are presented below:

2011 2010 At inception date

Senior Notes 201 1,075 1,151
Subordinated Notes 19 162 182
Recovery Units 130 163 131
Global Depository Receipts 6 57 59
356 1,457 1,523

The difference between the fair values at inception date and the current fair value in amount
of HUF 1,167 million is reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit or loss as
impairment loss on available-for-sale securities acquired in exchange for loan.

The GDRs and the notes mentioned above were listed on the official list of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange on 22 February 2011 and the trading is effective from 23 February 2011.

Remaining maturity of discounted bonds issued by National Bank of Hungary, Hungarian
discounted treasury bills and Hungarian Government bonds as at 31 December 2011 are
detailed below:

Remaining Maturity 2011 2010
1-7 days 9,970 -
8-30 days - 5,090
31-90 days - - :
91 to 180 days - 3,601
181 to 365 days - 7,461 5
1 to 2 years - -
2 to 5 years 750 -

Over 5 years - -

Total 10,720 16,152

Shares as at 31 December 2011 are detailed below.

Equity Face Cost Unrealised Book
owned Value gain/(loss) Value
Garantiqga Hitelgarancia Ltd. 0.3% 12 12 - 12
Total 12 12 12

No reliable market information was available for these financial instruments, therefore they
are stated at cost.
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NOTE 9.

INTANGIBLES, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Movement table of intangible and tangible assets as at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Leasehold Furniture, Assets Intangible Intangible Total
improve- fixtures & under assets agsets under
ments office construc- construction
equipment tion

Cost
31 December 2010 152 364 - 1,101 6 1,623
Additions - 13 13 74 74 174
Disposals - (11) (13) - (74) {98)
31 December 2011 152 366 - 1,175 6 1,699
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation
31 December 2010 144 299 - 992 - 1,435
Charge for year 4 25 - 70 - 99
Disposals - (11) - - (1)
31 December 2011 148 313 1,062 - 1,523
Net book value
31 December 2010 8 05 - 100 6 188
31 December 2011 4 53 - 113 6 176
Movement table of intangible and tangible assets as at 31 December 2010 is as follows:

Leasehold Furiture, Assets Intangible Intangible Total

improve- fixtures & under assets assets under

ments office construc- construction
equipment tion

Cost
31 December 2009 149 421 3 1,029 18 1,620
Additions 3 21 21 78 66 189
Disposals - (78) 24) (6) (78) (186)
31 December 2010 152 364 1,101 6 1,623
Accumnlated depreciation and amortisation
31 December 2009 140 315 - 841 - 1,296
Charge for year 4 36 157 - 197
Disposals - (52) (6) - (58)
31 December 2010 144 299 - 992 - 1,435
Net book value
31 December 2009 9 106 3 188 18 324
31 December 2010 8 65 - 109 6 188
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NOTE 10. OTHER ASSETS

2011 2010
Accrued interest receivable on debt securitics 111 513
Accrued inferest receivable re CCIR 124 213
Prepaid expenses 16 35
Taxation recoverable 537 135
Other 38 8
Sub-total 826 904

Less: impairment loss (see Note 11) - -
Total 826 904
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HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIYAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 12. LOANS AND DEPOSITS FROM OTHER BANKS

2011 2010

Short-term
- in foreign currency 81,687 24,970
- in HUF - 2,907
Sub-total 81,687 27,877

Long-term
- in foreign currency 94,009 146,007
Sub-total 94,009 146,007
Total 175,696 173,884

The table above contains a loan granted by Hungarian Development Bank Ltd. in June 2009
in amount of EUR 142 million with the main conditions stated below:

The interest rate is 3-month EURIBOR + 2.5 p.a. or the SDR interest rate in the given
currency shown on the web-site of ‘IMF SDR Interest rate calculation® + 2.45% p.a. +
interest premium on the web-site of ‘IMF SDR interest rate, Rate of Remuneration, Rate of
Charge and Burden Sharing Adjustments’ (2011: 100 basis points). The higher one of the
interest rates calculated based on the two methods is to be paid. The loan is decreased
quarterly by 8 equal instalments from 11 February 2011. The final maturity date of the loan
agreement is 11 November 2012.

Remaining maturity of loans and deposits from other banks as at 31 Pecember 2011 are as
follows.

Minimum and Maximum Effective Interest
Remaining Amount Fixed Interest Rate Rate
Maturity
In foreign currency:
1 to 7 days 131 0.65%-3.80% 1.92 %
8 to 30 days 708 0.65%-3.80% 2.70 %
31 to 90 days 6,599 3.73%-4.09% 4.05%
01 to 180 days 5,735 3.66%-4.09% 4,08 %
181 to 365 days 68,514 3.65%-4.33% 4.28 %
1 to 2 years 16,389 329%-4.02 % 3.69 %
2 t0 5 years 39,708 3.65%-4.10% 4,04 %
Over 5 years 37,912 1.67% - 3.90 % 2.04%
Sub-total 175,696
In HUF
Sub-total -
Total 176,696

30




HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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NOTE 12. LOANS AND DEPOSITS FROM OTHER BANKS (CONTINUED)

Remaining maturity of loans and deposits from other banks as at 31 December 2010 are as
follows.

Minimum and Maximum Effective Interest
Remaining Amount Fixed Interest Rate Rate
Maturity
In foreign currency:
1 to 7 days 633 1.25%-3.15% 1.39 %
8 to 30 days 938 1.25%-3.15% 1.39 %
31 to 90 days 5,657 304%-355% 3.50 %
91 to 180 days 6,193 3.15%-3.55% 3.50 %
181 to 365 days 11,549 3.04%-3.55% 351 %
1to 2 years 72,520 315%-3.93 % 3.80%
2 to § years 44,012 3.04%-3.63% 336 %
Over 5 years 29,475 126 % -3.49 % 1.38 %
Sub-total 170,977
In HUF
1 to 7 days 2,100 500%-525% 5.24%
8 to 30 days 807 5.15%-515% 5.15%
Sub-total 2,907

Total 173,884
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NOTE 13. OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued interest payable re CCIR
Accrued interest payable re FX swap
Accrued expenses

Accrued revenue

Tax liability

Other

Total

NOTE 14, SHAREHOLDER’ § EQUITY

Share capital

Share premium

Retained earnings

Fair value reserve, net of tax
Statutory reserves

Total

2011 2010
112 191

4 -

13 21
420 248
167 63
76 91
992 614
2011 2010
10,100 10,100
400 400
1,052 1,536
(34) (79)
6,147 5,129
17,665 17,086

As at 31 December 2010 the Bank’s share capital is comprised of 2020 fully paid
dematerialised shares, each with a nominal value of HUF 5 million. Reserves available for
distribution as at 31 December 2011 under Hungarian Law amount to HUF 300 million

(2010: HIUF 1,0005 million).

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the shareholders’ rights were the

following;
Shareholder Number of Face value of Equity owned Votes owned
shares shares
Hungarian  Development
Bank Ltd 1,514 7,570 74.95 % 75 % -1
Hungarian State™ 506 2,530 25.05 % 25 %+l
Total 2,020 10,100 100 % 100 %

* Rights of Hungarian State are represented by Hungarian Development Bank Ltd.
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NOTE 15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIARILITIES

In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into off-balance sheet financial instruments
such as guarantees and letters of credit. Commitments and contingent liabilities as at

31 December 2011 and 2010 are summarised as follows:

Guarantees counter-guaranteed by the Republic of

Hungary
Unutilised part of credit lines
Guarantees provided

Total

2011 2010
34,795 34,576
78,019 21,445

2,111 3,489
114,925 59,510

Guarantees issued by the Bank are mainly guarantees issued to Hungarian companies for

recetvables relating to exports.

There are no assets of the Bank that are pledged as collateral.

NOTE 16. TAXATION

Profit (loss) before income tax
Applicable tax rate up to MHUF 500
{(up to MHUF 250 in 2010)
Applicable tax rate above MHUF500
{above MHUF 250 in 2010)

Average tax rate

Adjustments:

(Charge)/Release of General risk
TEServe

Fair values not recognised by tax
rules

Fair values in equity recognised by
tax rules

Non deductible expenses

Total adjustments

Effective tax

2011 2010

570 1,445

10 % 50 10% 25
19 % 13 19% 227
1% 63 17% 252
1% 4 1% 15
3% 15 29% 416
(1%) 4 (31%) (448)
(9%) (50) 0% -
(5%) 27) ( 1%} (17)
6 % 36 16% 235

As a result of the Bank’s accounting policies, no material temporary differences existed
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Therefore, no deferred tax asset or liability was

recognised.
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NOTE 17. INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE

2011 2010
Interest income:
Loans and advances to customers 2,564 3,436
Loans and advances to other banks 2,663 3,375
Cross currency interest rate swap 214 64
Interest compensation* 3,171 o 2,591
Securities 2,237 882
Total . 10,849 10,348
Interest expense:
Loans and deposits from other banks 6,230 4,523
Teotal 4,619 5,825

* In accordance with the rules and conditions of the Government Decree 85/1998 (V.6.) on
the interest compensation system and of the Government Decree 232/2003 (XI1.16.) on the
tied aid-credits the Bank receives inferest compensation from Hungarian State for special
financing facilities.
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NOTE 17. INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Interest income by country and activity for the year ended 2011 and 2010 are detailed below:

2011 2010
Country Loans Invest- Non- Total Loans Invest- Non- Total
ment  Allocated ment  Allocated
Hungary 7,558 2,114 1 9,673 7.862 821 1 8,684
Austria 11 - - 11 9 - - 9
United - - - - 1 - - 1
Kingdom
Germany - - - - 1 - - 1
Romania 63 - - 63 43 - - 43
Poland 173 - - 173 165 - - 165
Belarus 6 - - 6 g - - 9
Bosnia and 17 - - 17 19 - - 19
Herzegovina
Serbia 4 - - 4 2 - - 2
Montenegro 26 - - 26 27 - - 27
Russia 469 - - 469 1,194 - - 1,194
Turkey 66 - - 66 30 - - 30
Ukraine 03 - - 63 81 - - g1
Brazil - - - - 8 - - 3
Kazakhstan - - 122 122 (44) - - (44)
Egypt 42 - - 42 3 - - 3
China 48 - - 43 49 - - 49
Tajikistan 66 - - 66 67 - - 67
Total 8,612 2,114 123 10,849 9,526 821 1 10,348
NOTE 18. NET INCOME FROM FEES AND COMMISSIONS
2011 2010
Income from fees and commissions:
Guarantees covered by the state 222 1,048
Insurance fees devolved by MEHIB 12 51
Refund of MEHIB insurance fees - 3
Guarantees 56 78
Other 2 5
: 292 1,190
Expenses from fees and commissions:
Insurance fees paid to MEHIB 58 4
Transfer of refunded MEHIB insurance fees - 8
“Gliarantees 44 407
Other 4 4
106 423
Total 186 767

35




HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
{All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 18. NET INCOME FROM FEES AND COMMISSIONS (CONTINUED)

Income from fees and commissions by country and activity for the year ended 2011 and
2010 are detailed below:

2011 2010
Country Loans Invest- Non- Total Loans Invest- Non- Total
ment  Allocated ment  Allocated
Hungary 2 - 222 224 14 - 1,082 1,096
Poland - - - - 2 - - 2
Russia 12 - - 12 49 - - 49
USA - - 55 55 - - 43 43
Macedonia - - 1 I - - - -
Total 14 - 278 292 65 - 1,125 1,190

NOTE 19.1 GAINS AND LOSSES FROM TRADING AND INVESTMENT

ACTIVITIES, NET

2011 2010
Trading securities gains and losses, net * {7 434
(Gain and losses on foreign currency swap 3,561 (1,914)
deals, net
Other foreign currency gains and losses, net (4,310) 1,510
Foreign currency gains and losses, net * {749 (4043
Total (756) 30

* - Also includes the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, based on quoted market prices.

NOTE 19.2 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2011 2010
Personnel expenses 1,344 1,637
Material expenses 546 604
Depreciation and amortisation 99 197
Other administration expenses 48 51
Special tax of credit institution™® 321 301
Local government taxes 197 156
Tax on financial institutions 207 433
Tax of credit institutions 247 -
Other expenses/ (income), net 18 (51)
Total 3,027 3322
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NOTE 19.2 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

*The Hungarian Parliament introduced a new type of tax effective from 1% January 2007 in
the frame of Act LIX of 2006 on the particular tax of the credit institutions and financial
enterprises. The credit institutions shall pay this type of tax at the rate of five per cent on
their interest and similar income carned during the year from loans which are directly or
indirectly affected by any interest subsidy or interest compensation system.

Since 2011, a new tax, the tax of credit institutions — 30 % of the adjusted pre-tax profit - is
included in other expenses as well. The adjusted pre-tax profit is the pre-tax profit in
accordance with the Hungarian accounting law increased by the tax on financial institutions.
Tax of credit institutions cannot exceed the amount of tax on financial institutions which is
based on the adjusted total assets for the vear ended in 31 December 2009, The tax on
financial institutions can be decreased by the amount of the tax of credit institutions and
recognised as other expenses. The amount of tax of credit institutions is deductible from the
corporate income tax base.

The average number of employees as at 2011 was 107 (2010: 114).

NOTE 20.1 COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2011 2010
Available for sale financial assets
Gains (losses) ariging during the year 41 (97)
Less: Reclassification adjustments for gains included in P&L. 97 {239)
Other comprehensive income 56 (336)
Income tax relating to components (11) 57
Other comprehensive income for the year 45 (279)

All the components of other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2011
and 31 December 2010 stated above are items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss.

NOTE 20.2 TAX EFFECTS RELATING TO EACH COMPONENT OF THE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2011 2010
Before- Tax Net of  Before- Tax Net of tax
tax (expense) tax tax (expense)  amount
amount benefit amount  amount benefit
Available for sale financial assets 56 (1) 45 (336) 57 (279)
Total comprehensive income (1,112) 211 {901) (336) 57 (279)
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HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTE 21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
21.1 Companies

All transactions with the Hungarian Development Bank Ltd. (“MFB”} and MFB’s
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities and other state-owned companies are
conducted at market rates. Balances as at 31 December 2011, representing 23.10 % of total
assets (2010: 20.37 %), 80.05 % of total liabilities (2010: 83.55 %) and 0.15 % of total
commitments and contingent liabilities (2010: 33.87 %), and are presented below:
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NOTE 21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2011 2010
Balances with NBH 6 1
Short-term placement to MFB incl. interest receivable 19,916 6,972
Loans to MFB’s subsidiaries incl. interest receivable 12,944 [3.914
Loans to MFB’s associates incl. interest receivable 503 454
- less impairment losses 5 -
Advances to the State from interest compensation systems 946 768
Total loans and advances to related parties, net of
impairment losses 34,304 22,108
Hungarian Government bonds - 553
Total financial assets at fair value to related parties - 553
Hungarian discounted treasury bills - 16,152
Discounted bonds issued by NBH 9,970
Hungarian Government bonds 750 -
Total available for sale financial assets to related parties 0,720 16,152
Other assets to the State 41 452
Other assets to MFB 124 215
Total other assets to related parties 165 667
Total Assets 45,195 39,481
Loans and deposits from MFB incl. accrued int.payables 141,253 146,360
Cross currency interest rate swap with MFB 1,211 1,074
Total financial liabilities at fair value to related parties 1,211 1,074
Other liabilities to MFB 112 191
Other liabilities to MFB’s subsidiaries - 1
Total other liabilities to related parties 112 192
Total Liabilities 142,576 147,626
Guarantees provided on behalf of other state-owned
company 169 153
Other commitments and contingent liabilities - 20,000
Total commitments and contingent liabilities 16% 20,153
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NOTE 21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2011 2010
Interest income:
Short-term placements to MFB 14 7
Loans to MFB’s subsidiaries 763 977
Loans to MIB’s associates 40 47
State interest compensation 3,171 2,591
Interest on cross currency interest rate swap 214 64
Hungarian discounted treasury bills, discounted bonds
issued by NBH and Hungarian Government bonds 2,114 821
Total 6,316 4,507
Interest expense:
Loans and deposits from MFB 5,057 3,548
Total 5,057 3,548
Income from fees and commissions:
Refund of MEHIR insurance fees - 8
Total - 8
Expenses from fees and commissions:
Insurance fees paid to MEHIB 58 4
Total 58 4
Net interest income and net income from fees and
commissions 1,201 963
Provision and impairment losses Charge/ (release);
Loans and credit lines to MFB’s associates 5 (3)
Total 5 3)
Gains and losses from trading activities, net :
Hungarian discounted treasury bills and Hungarian
Government bonds (6) 218
Total {(6) 218
Operating income/(expenses):
MFB - 2
MFB’s subsidiaries 19 12
Other state-owned companies (10 (12)
Total 9 2
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NOTE 21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
21.2 Management and employees

Loans to the management and employees of the Bank amounted to HUF 72 million and HUF
1051 million as at 31 December 2011 and 2010, respectively. Interest rates vary between 0
% and 5.00 %, and averages at 1.21 %. The remuneration of the management amounted to
HUF 138 million and HUF 335 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively. The remuneration of
the management mentioned above includes the termination benefits paid to the management,
which amounted to HUF 19 million in 2011 (2010: 119).

The honorarium of the Board of Directors and the Supervisoty Board added up HUF 8
million in 2010, while it was nil in 2011. The Board of Directors has been terminated in June
2010 by the medification of the Act on Eximbank and the rights of the former Board of
Directors are exercised by the Chief Executive Officer. In January 2012 the General Meeting
recalled the Chief Executive Officer from his position. The nomination of the new CEOQ is
effective from 22 March 2012.
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HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management activity of Eximbank is determined by its specific role and position in the
Hungarian economy. The Bank’s ultimate owner is the state with a 25 % direct and with a 75
% indirect shareholding stake via Hungarian Development Bank Ltd. The Bank is a credit
institution and its primary task is to promote Hungarian exporters on external markets.

In order to diminish the risk of open bond positions the Bank holds bonds with no credit risk
exclusively and does not deal with futures or options. Eximbank neither speculates on the
stock exchange nor buys derivatives and does not issue bonds.

The Bank’s policies for managing interest rate, credit, foreign currency exchange risk and
liquidity risk are reviewed regularly by the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), Credit
Committee and the Board of Operative Management. The policies are summarised as
follows:

Risk management policies

The Bank is exposed to interest rate, liquidity and foreign currency exchange risk, while the
most significant risk is the credit risk. Risk management is carried out by the Risk
Management Department under policies approved by ALCO and the CEO. These principles
are determined within the prescriptions established by the National Bank of Hungary, the
Hungarian Financial Institutions Supervision and with the rules of MFB Group. The Asset
and Liability Committee and the Board of Operative Management and Credit Committee are
responsible for review of risk management and control environment. The risk profile is
assessed before concluding a transaction, which is authorised by the appropriate level of
seniority within the Bank. The service pattern reflects the entire process of exporting, and the
tisk is shared with commercial banks. The specific character of the credit risk can mostly be
detected by differentiating by product and consumer categories. Eximbank has created its
risk map, which enables further separation of risks in terms of products and risk types.

Risk map and risk profile

The Bank’s risk strategy includes the exploration, identification and separation of risks,
furthermore the calculation of the risk level and weight of them. The risk map gives a
detailed specification of risk categories concerning the Bank’s regular course of business and
economic environment. The first dimension of the risks is the type (according to the ICAAP
guide book) and the second one is the bank-specific aspect of the services and products.
Certain risk factors were evaluated on a 1-5 scale by the Bank’s different arcas. Most of the
rates in the table point to the fact that the majority of the risks are low or represent moderate
nisk level. The assessment of risk profile is based on the risk map, taking into consideration
the extent of the exposure and the seriousness of the risk. This method gives us a general
overview about the Bank’s risk profile and an opportunity to perform continuous monitoring
activity. The credit, country and concentration risk can be detected by the vertical
aggregation of the rows of the risk map, The level of credit risk is moderate, since the credit
portfolio consists of products with lower risk level: products carrying risk exposure to
domestic banks, counter-guarantees of state. The aggregated country risk components seem
to be at a very low risk level at first sight, which can be explained by the excess weight of
domestic risk taking. Furthermore, the foreign positions tend to be oriented towards more
reliable directions and they are also backed with insurance.
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
23.1. Credit risk
Management of credit risk, credit rating systems

The Bank manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is
willing to accept for clients, counterpartics and for country concentrations, and by
monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. The exposure to any one borrower is further
restricted by sub-limits for different maturity and transaction type. The credit risk
management is based on a client rating system, which applies different essentials for
financial institutions and for corporate clients. The scoring system takes into account the
business activity, financial position, market position, management, organisation and its role
in the given business sector. Both the on- and off-balance sheet items (loans, guarantees) are
subject to quarterly classification requirements. The key factors of the rating are:

1. Consumer/counterparty rating

2. Country risk

3. Collateral

4. Number of past due days

The classified outstanding and off-balance sheet items have to be categorised, where the
banding pattern is the following:

Low-fair risk 0%
Watch list 1-10%
Substandard 11 -30%
Doubtful 31— 70%
Loss 71— 100%

There is also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as non-government
backed guarantees. These risks are mitigated by the same control processes and policies as
loans and the state-backed guarantees are also evaluated by the same method as the ones
issued on our own risk.
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

23.1.  Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk

The Bank’s exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is shown below:

Loans and advances to

Loans and advances to

banks customers

2011 2010 2011 2010

Carrying amount 128,893 107,469 54,589 66,912
Individually impaired: :

1-10 % - 2,031 12,806 22,267

11-30% 79 - 1,841 111

31-70 % - - 187 172

71-100 % 165 141 2,358 1,736

Gross amount 244 2,172 17,192 24,286

Allowance for impairment {188) (246) (2,939 (2,148)

Carrying amount 56 1,926 14,253 22,138

Collectively impaired: - - -

Past due but not impaired: 251 787 4,322

Neither past due nor impaired: 128,586 104,517 28,456 34,819

Accounts with renegotiated terms:

Gross amount 30 1,252 13,004 7,862

Allowance for impairment (301) (626) (1,911) (2,229)

Carrying amount - 626 11,093 5,633

Total carrying amount 128,893 107,469 54.589 66,912

In the year ended 2011 financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in amount of HUF
47 million (2010: 618 million) and available-for-sale financial assets in amount of HUF
10,732 million (2010: HUF 17,621 million) are neither past due nor impaired, however the
securities acquired in exchange for loan in amount of HUF 336 million presented among
available-for-sale financial assets are individually impaired in 2011 {Note 7).

Impaired loans and securities

The Bank does not apply the collective impairment, all loans are individually assessed.
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
23.1. Credit risk (continued)
Loans with renegotiated terms

A loan is iabelled to be renegotiated when restructuring activities, including extended
payment agreements, modification and deferral of payments are applied.

Write-off policy

A loan (and the related impairment allowance account) is normally written off, either
partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery of the principal amount
and, for a collaterised loan, when the proceeds from realising the security have been
received.

Collaterals

The Bank actively uses collateral and guarantee to reduce its credit risk. In order to minimise
the credit loss, the Bank seeks additional collateral from the consumer, like for instance
charges over accounts receivable. Most of the gnarantees issued by the Eximbank are
government-backed instruments. The Eximbank is bound up with the Hungarian Export
Credit Insurance Ltd. (Mehib Ltd.). The majority of Eximbank’s loans, which are carrying
country risks are insured by Mehib Ltd., and these insurances are also state-backed.
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

23.1.  Credit risk (continued)

An estimate of fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held against financial

assets 1s shown below:

Against individually impaired:
Insured by MEHIB
Cash Collateral
Bank gnarantees
Property
Other
Against past due but not impaired:
Insured by MEHIB
Cash Collateral
Property
Other
Against neither past due nor
impaired:
Insured by MEHIB
Cash Collateral
Bank guarantees
Property
Other
Against accounts with renegotiated
terms:
Insured by MEHIB
Cash Collateral
Bank guarantees
Property
Other
Total

233. Liquidity risk

Loans and advances to

Loans and advances to

banks customers
2011 2010 2011 2010
- 1,035 10,406 17,224
- - 4 6
- - 1,457 649
- - 522 1,573
- - 470 1,122
239 - 748 2,651
13 - 39 44
- - - 744
- - - 194
588 274 22,252 30,026
- 14 581 062
- . 175 944
- - 4590 1,127
- - 8,732 9,403
- - 6,798 4,199
- - - 221
- - 290 -
- - 920 332
- - 891 939
840 1,323 54,735 72,060

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its payment obligations when
they fall due under normal and stress circumstances. The liquidity management process is
carried out and monitored by the Treasury Department, and it is also responsible for
calculating the liquidity reserve. The Treasury monitors balance sheet liquidity ratios against
internal and regulatory requirements and reports unmatched items in the maturity structure to
the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). The ALCO sets limits on the maximum amount
of liquidity gap in the percentage of the balance-sheet footing, which are controlled by the
Risk Management and Controlling Department.

48



HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2611
(Al amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The maturity analysis table set out in Note 22 shows the undiscounted, gross nominal cash
in- and outflows on the Bank’s non-derivative financial liabilities, the related total expected
undiscounted interest cash flows up to the date of maturity when they are due and the issued
financial guarantee contracts on the basis of their earliest possible maturity. The table also
shows a maturity amalysis for derivative financial liabilities including the remaining
contractual maturities for those derivatives for which contractual maturities are essential for
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The gross nominal inflow / (cutflow)
disclosed in the table is the remaining contractual, undiscounted cash flow on the non-
derivative financial liability and the issued financial guarantees. The disclosure for
derivatives shows a gross inflow and outflow amount for derivatives (e.g., forward exchange
contracts and currency interest rate swaps).

The maturity analysis table shows gross nominal in- and out-cash flows of both the financial
assets and the financial liabilities.

The Bank considers maturity gap significant if the cash outflow becomes due 180 days
earlier than it is defined in the given loan agreement irrespectively of the extent of the
amount. During the year 2011 there were no any significant maturity gaps.

It is important from Bank’s liquidity risk point of view that its liabilities are solely from
credit instifutions. As a specialized governmental credit institution Eximbank has no right to
collect deposits either from corporate clients or from individuals. Loans borrowed from
domestic and foreign banks are secured by the general guarantee of the Government of
Hungary as it is defined in the Act on the Budget of Hungary with respect to the maximum
amount of guarantee. The Bank finances its operation mainly from funds given by its main
shareholder. Some loan agreements define maturity extension option in favor of the Bank.
Eximbank occasionally turns to interbank market for medium term funding. Except for the
termination notices of the standard agreement forms used by the ‘Loan Market Association’
and for the negative changes regarding the State Guarantee there is no option for the lenders
to terminate the loan agreements. Termination of short term money market deals is not
possible due to its market characteristic. Based on the legal background of the Bank, the high
proportion of the borrowings from the parent company and its experiences, Eximbank
reckons the probability of the premature termination of funds as extremely low. There is a
minimal liquidity risk regarding the state backed bank guarantees issued by the Bank, which
are 90 % of the total guarantee portfolio of the Bank, as state backed bank guarantees can be
paid after the total amount received from the State Budget. It is possible to terminate the
unutilized loan commitments based on the ‘“Material Adverse Changes Clause’ defined in all
loan agreements, which can mitigate the liquidity risk if necessary,
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
23.3. Market risk

Eximbank does not undertake speculative positions. The Bank has not kept positions in the
trading book since 1 January 2008,

The Bank’s open foreign currency position was less than 2 % of solvency margin, thus - in
accordance with Sections 39-41 of the Government Decree 244/2000 - it posed no capital
requirement.

The following table shows the capital requirement covering risks from the trading book as at
31 December 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010

Capital requirement of the trading book - -
Solvency margin 33,606 44,351
Capital requirement of the trading book as a

percentage of solvency margin - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUVED)
23.3.1. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the current or prospective risk to both the Bank’s earnings and capital
from adverse movements in interest rates. The Bank measures the interest rate risk in the
banking book under re-pricing of the loans, furthermore using gap analysis shows the assets
and labilities at different re-pricing dates. Besides the re-pricing risk and shifts in the yicld
curve the Bank also faces with basis risk and inherent risk in banking products. Interest rate
risk is largely reduced by a compensation system, which covers the risk arising from fixed
interest-bearing assets compared to floating rate funds with a certain amount approved by the
Parliament for a one year period in the budgetary law.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Bank's interest-bearing financial
instruments was as follows:

2011 2010
Fixed rate financial instruments
Financial assets 58,473 63,646
Financial liabilities 12,719 14,635
Total fixed rate instruments 71,192 78,281
Vériable rate financial instruments
Financial assets 8,769 25,314
Financial liabilities 163,338 159,376
Total variable rate instruments 172,107 184,690
Financial assets under interest compensation
system 119,056 96,412
Tied-aid credits 7,399 6,852

Financial assets under interest compensation system and tied-aid credits are fixed rate or zero
interest-bearing financial instruments in case of some tied-aid credits in the clients’ point of
view, however the Bank receives interest compensation on these assets from Hungarian
State. The interest compensation is quarterly calculated and due, based on the weighted
average of the daily balances.

Net interest rate risk is assessed using a static gap model regarding parallel shift for the
entire statement of financial position calculated by VAR (i.e. value at risk) based estimation
of changes in interest rates of different currencies. The estimated decrease in the market
interest rates would affect negatively the net interest income for the next twelve months by
HUF 224 million (2010: HUF 119 million). (VAR parameters: 99% probability and 3 month
time horizon, based on 5 years’ historical data of LIBOR6m rates for EUR and USD and
BUBOR6Om rates for HUF) The calculation assumes that other conditions (including foreign
exchange rates) are unchanged during the period. Adverse change in interest rate would
make the same profit effect, but positively. Needs of capital requirement in respect of
interest rate risk are calculated with duration gap methodology based on a basis point value
mode] regarding VAR of changes in interest rates. Stress test is used for monitoring interest
rate risks monthly.
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
23.3.2. Foreign currency risk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency
exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. The ALCO also sets limits to the
level of exposure by currency and in aggregate both for overnight and intra-day positions,
which are monitored and reported daily. Furthermore, calculating foreign currency exchange
risk conforms to the norms of the standard method. The Bank’s overall open foreign
currency position cannot exceed HUF 1,100 million. Eximbank does not speculate on the FX
market and opens FX positions within the frameworks of highly restricted rules. Foreign
currency positions are subject to siress test to ensure that the Bank would withsiand an
extreme market event.

23.3.2. Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency exposure and foreign currency risk (including HUF exposures) as at 31
December 2011 are as follows:

EUR. USD GBP HUF Total
Foreign currency assets:
Loans and advances to
other banks, net of
impairment losses 104,641 18,050 - 6,202 128,893

Loans and advances to
customers, net of

impairment losses 44,393 8,149 - 2,047 54,589

Other 204 529 3 11,563 12,299
Total foreign currency

Assets 149,238 26,728 3 19,812 195,781
Foreign currency liabilities 175,737 498 - 1,881 178,116

Foreign currency assets

and liabilities, net (26,499 26,230 3 17,931 17,665
Effect of derivatives 26,735 (26,224) - (1,913) (1,402)
Net exposure 236 6 3 16,018 16,263

Foreign currency off-
balance sheet assets 4,775 1,520 - 34,795 41,090

Foreign currency off-
balance sheet liabilities 99,409 14,930 - 586 114,925
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

23.3.2. Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency exposure and foreign currency risk (including HUF exposures) as at 31
December 2010 are as follows:

EUR USD GBP HUF Total

Foreign currency assets:

Loans and advances to

other banks, net of

impairment losses 80,767 26,702 - - 107,469
Loans and advances to

customers, net of

impairment losses 56,409 8,874 - 1,629 66,912

Other 262 1,532 2 17,602 19,393
Total foreign currency

Assets 137,438 37,108 2 19,231 193,779
Foreign currency liabilities 172,126 405 - 4162 176,693
Foreign currency assets '

and liabilities, net (34,688) 36,703 2 15,069 17,086
Effect of derivatives 35,138 (36,248) - - (1,110
Net exposure 450 455 2 15,069 15,976
Foreign currency off-

balance sheet assets 3,304 2,332 - 34,593 40,229

Foreign currency off-
balance sheet liabilities 47,438 12,036 - 36 59,510
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

23.3.2. Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Bank’s net currency exposure was subject (o a stress test examining how it would react
to extreme exchange rates. The following tables show the change in the Bank’s net foreign
currency exposure at the extreme currency situations explained above compared with the
actual exposure as at 31 December 2011 and as at 31 December 2010 resulting in profit or
loss. In equity there is no foreign currency position, therefore the effect of an extreme change
in exchange rates on equity cannot be examined. The calculation assumes that other

conditions are unchanged during the period.

Extreme foreign currency risk calculation as at 31 December 2011

EUR UsDh Total
Foreign currency exchange rate as at 31 December 31113 240.68
2011
Exchange rates at strong HUF (minimum of
historical rates in 2011) 262.70 177.69
Effect on profit or (loss) 37 2 39
Exchange rates at weak HUF (maximum of historical
rates in 2011) 31624 240).68
Effect on profit or (loss) 4 - (4)
Extreme foreign currency risk calculation as at 31 December 2010
EUR USD Total
Foreign currency exchange rate as at 31 December 27875 208.65
2010
Exchange rates at strong HUF (minimum of
historical rates in 2010) 261.6 184
Effect on profit or (loss) 117 (118) ()
Exchange rates at weak HUF (maximum of historical
rates in 2010) 290.03 24(.57
Effect on profit or (loss) (17) 153 76
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NOTE 23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
23.4. Capital management

Concerning the palicy and the methods for capital handling the Bank follows the provisions
of Hungarian Banking Act, of the Act on the Eximbank as well as of the Government Decree
No. 196/2007 on the calculation of capital requirement.

According to the provisions of the Act CXII of 1996 on Credit Institutions and Financial
Enterprises the financial institutions should dispose of a solvency margin ensuring the cover
of the actual risks of its activity in order to maintain the actual financial solvency and to
fulfil its liabilities, and the Bank should permanently maintain a minimum capital adequacy
ratio of 8 percent.

The solvency margin is defined according to the Schedule No. 5 of the Act CXIE of 1996 on
Credit Institutions and Financial Enterprises, the capital adequacy ratio is defined according
to the Decree.

The provision of capital handling is controlled by the Hungarian Financial Supervisory
Authority.

In 2007 according to provisions of Article 20 of Act on Eximbank (Solvency margin and
capital adequacy) and Schedule No 5 of Act CXII of 1996 on Credit Institutions and
Financial Enterpriscs, MFB has provided to the Bank a subordinated loan capital in the
amount of EUR 100 million. The maturity of this particular loan is 12" of September 2017.
In line with the referred provisions, the amount of the subordinated loan capital is to be
considered as a positive component of the guarantee capital of Eximbank. On the 31% of
December 2011 and 2010 the amount of the long-term liability arising from the loan
agreement is HUF 31,113 million and HUF 27,875 million, respectively. At the end of the
year 2009 the Act on Hungarian Export-Import Bank Corporation has been modified: the
amount of the subordinated loan capital is to be the component of the guarantee capital of the
Bank in the year ended 31 December 2010 at the latest occasion. At the end of the year 2010
the Act on Hungarian Export-Import Bank Corporation (Article 20. of Act on Eximbank) has
been modified again: the amount of the subordinated loan capital is to be the component of
the guarantee capital of the Bank until its exposure. According to this modification the
Solvency ratio will be satisfying till 2017.

The Bank fulfilled the legal and prudential requirements in the year of 2011 and 2010,
permanently complied with the limits of the Act CXII of 1996 on Credit Institutions and
Financial Enferprises, the capital adequacy ratio has always significantly exceed the 8
percent required by the law as stated above.

2011 2010
Core capital 16,803 16,476
Supplementary capital 16,803 27,875
Solvency margin 33,606 44 351
Total risk-weighted exposure to credit risk 145,098 108,639
Solvency ratio 21.65% 3731 %
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NOTE 24. CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITES BY BUSINESS
SEGMENTS

Banks

Eximbank refinances domestic banks that provide export finance to Hungarian companies.
The Bank also provides credits to foreign banks. This business segment includes the funds
that finance the placements to banks as well as nostro accounts and interbank placements to
and credits from domestic and foreign banks.

Corporate

This segment involves export-financing loans to domestic and foreign companiges, forfeit,
letter of credit and other credit products. The funds financing loans to companies are also
presented here.

Guarantees

Eximbank provides guarantees for its own risk as well as those counter-guaranteed by the
state.

Treasury

Management of shareholders’ equity is presented here; money market assets and the money
market liabilities funding them are involved in this segment.

Other

This segment contains activities not directly attributable to any of the above segment.
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HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 25. CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2011
Hungary EU Non-EU Other Total
Members European Countries
Countries
Cash, due from banks and balances
with NBH 15 32 16 99 162
Loans and advances to other banks net
of impairment losses 127,392 - 1,244 257 128,893
Loans and advances to customers, net
of impairment losses 11,332 3,827 34,688 4,742 54,589
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 47 - - - 47
Available-for-sale financial assets 10,732 - - 356 11,088
Intangibles, property and equipment,
net 176 - - - 176
Other assets, net 714 2 39 71 826
Total Assets 150,408 3,861 35,987 5,525 195,781
Loans and deposits from other banks 163,238 12,458 - - 175,696
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 1,211 196 - - 1,407
Other liabilities incl. provision 626 3 14 370 1,013
Total liabilities 165,075 12,657 14 370 178,116
Share capital 10,100 - - - 10,100
Reserves 7,565 - - - 7,565
Total Shareholder’s Equity 17,665 - - - 17,665
Total Liabilities and Equity 182,639 12,657 14 370 195,680
Off-balance sheet financial
instruments
Guarantees insured by the state 25,917 787 8,091 - 347795
Unutilised part of credit lines 66,245 - 11,774 - 78,019
Letter of Credit - - - - -
Guarantees 1,844 41 226 - 2,111
Total 94,006 828 20,091 - 114,925
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HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless othervise noted)

NOTE 25. CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2010

Hungary EU Non-EU Other Total
Members European Countries

Countries
Cash, due from banks and balances
with NBH 10 47 - 10 67
Loans and advances to other banks net
of impairment losses 103,830 781 2,636 222 107,469
Loans and advances to customers, net
of impairment losses 10,869 3,760 48,637 3646 66,912
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 553 65 - - 018
Available-for-sale financial assets 16,164 - - 1,457 17,621
Intangibles, property and equipment,
net 188 - - - 188
Other assets, net 842 - - 62 004
Total Assets 132,456 4,653 51,273 5,397 193,779
Loans and deposits from other banks 162,679 11,203 - - 173,884
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 1,074 - - - 1,074
Other liabilities incl. provision 1,367 - 63 305 1,735
Total liabilities 165,120 11,205 63 305 176,693
Share capital 10,100 - - - 10,100
Reserves 6,986 - - - 6,986
Total Shareholder’s Equity 17,086 - - - 17,086
Total Liabilities and Equity 182,206 11,205 63 305 193,779
Off-balance sheet financial
instruments
Guarantees insured by the state 27,913 682 5,981 - 34576
Unutilised part of credit lines 3,225 213 16,798 1,200 21,445
Letter of Credit - - - - -
Guarantees 3,282 36 171 - 3,489
Total 34,420 931 22,950 1,209 59,510




HUNGARIAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK PTE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DE CEMBER 2011
(All amounts stated in HUF million unless otherwise noted)

NOTE 25. SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Hungary EU Non-EU Other Total
Members European Countries

Countries
Interest income:

Loans 1,618 236 563 142 2,564
Loans and advances to other banks 2,555 11 83 14 2,663
Other interest income 5,500 - - 122 5,622
ey
Total interest income 9,673 247 651 278 10,849
Income from fees and commissions:
Guarantees covered by the state 169 - - 53 222
Insurance fees devolved by MEHIB - - 12 - 12
Refand of MEHIB insurance fee - - - - -
Guarantees 53 - 1 2 56
Other 2 - - - 2
e
Total income from fees and
commissions 224 L 13 55 292
T
Total Income 9,897 247 664 333 11,141

SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

e

Hungary EU Non-EU Other Total
Members European Countries

Countries
Interest income:

Loans 1,937 208 1,178 113 3,436
Loans and advances to other banks 3,272 11 183 ®1 3,375
Other interest income 3,476 - - 61 3,537
Total interest income 8,685 219 1,361 23 10,348
Income from fees and commissions:

Guarantees covered by the state 1,007 - - 41 1,048
Insurance fees devolved by MEHIB - 2 49 - 51
Refund of MEHIB insurance fee 3 - - - 8
Guarantees 76 - - 2 78
Other 5 - - - 5

—____________————————_;

Total income from fees and

commissions 1,096 2 49 43 1,190
ey
Total Income 9,781 221 1,410 126 11,538
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NOTE 26. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 12 April 2012 the Hungarian Government announced that Hungarian State acquires the
shares in Eximbank owned by Hungarian Development Bank Lid. and all the shareholders’
rights are exercised by Ministry of National Economy. The Government asked the relevant
Ministries to make the necessary steps immediately including preparing modification of
relevant laws and agreements.

There were no events after the balance sheet date, which have any significant effect on
figures in financial statements for the year 2011.

NOTE 27. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Management discusses with the Supervisory Board the development, selection and
disclosure of the Bank’s critical accounting policies and estimates, and the application of
these policies and estimates.

These disclosures supplement the commentary on financial risk management (see Note 22.}.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Allowances for credit losses

Assets measured at amorlised cost are tested for impairment on a basis described in
accounting policy described in accounting policy (see Note 3.9.1).

The specific counterparty component of the total allowances for impairment applies to
financial assets tested individually for impairment and is based upon management’s best
estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received. In
estimating these cash flows, management makes judgements about the counterparty’s
financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired
asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows
considered recoverable are independently approved by the Credit Risk function.

Determining fair values

The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no
observable market price requires the use of valuation techniques as described in accounting
policy. For financial instruments that are traded infrequently and have little price
transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgement
depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and
other risks affecting the specific instrument. See also “Valuation of financial instruments”

below.

Critical accounfing judgements in applying the Bank’s accounting policies

Critical accounting judgements made in applying the Bank’s accounting policies include:

Valuation of financial instruments, fair value hierarchy
The Bank’s accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed in Note 3.3.

The Bank measures fair value using the following hierarchy of methods:
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NOTE 27. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or the liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.c. derived
from prices);

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs).

The Bank has no such financial instruments of which fair value is determined using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method:

31 December 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Financial assets at fuir value through

profit or loss

Debt and equity instruments - - -

Derivative instruments - 47 47
- 47 47
Available-for-sale financial assets 11,088 - 11,088
11,088 - 11,088
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Derivative instruments - 1,407 1,407
- 1,407 1,407
31 December 2010
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Debt and equity instruments 553 - 553
Derivative instrumerits - 65 65
553 65 618
Available-for-sale financial assets 17,621 - 17,621
17,621 - 17,621
Financial labilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Derivative instruments - 1,074 1,074
- 1,074 1,074

There have been no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.
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NOTE 28. ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS AND FAIR VALUES

The estimated fair values disclosed below are designated to approximate values at which
these instruments could be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction between willing parties.
However, many of the financial instruments have no active market and therefore, fair values
are based on estimates using net present value and other valuation techniques, which are
significantly affected by the assumptions used concerning the amount and timing of the
estimated future cash flows and discount rates, which reflect varying degrees of risk.
Furthermore, due to the use of subjective judgement and uncertainties, the aggregate fair
value amounts should not be interpreted as being realisable in an immediate settlement of the
instraments.

As at 31 December 2011, the fair values of the Eximbank’s financial assets and liabilities
were as follows:

Trading Loansand  Available Other Carrying Fair
receivables  -for-sale amortised amount value
cost
Cash due from banks and
balances with  National
Bank of Hungary - 162 - - 162 162
Loans and advances to other
banks - 128,893 - - 128,893 128,893
Loans and advances to
customers - 54,588 - - 54,588 54,588
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 47 - - - 47 47
Available-for-sale financial
assets - - 11,088 - 11,088 11,088
Total 47 183,643 11,088 - 194,778 194,778
Loans and deposits from
other banks - - - 175,696 175,696 175,696
Financial habilities at fair
value through profit or loss 1,407 - - - 1,407 1,407
Total 1,407 - - 175,696 177,103 177,103
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NOTE28.  ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS AND FAIR VALUES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2010, the fair values of the Eximbank’s financial assets and liabilities
were as follows:

Trading Loans and  Available Other Carrying Fair
receivables -for-sale amortised amount value
cost
Cash due from banks and
balances with  National
Bank of Hungary - 67 - - 67 67
Loans and advances to other
banks - 107,469 - - 107,469 107,469
Loans and advances fo
customers - 66,912 - - 66,912 66,912
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 618 - - - 618 618
Available-for-sale financial
assets - - 17,621 - 17,621 17,621
Total 618 174,448 17,621 - 192,687 192,687
Loans and deposits from
other banks - - - 173,884 173,884 173,884
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss 1,074 - - - 1,074 1,074
Total 1,074 - - 173,884 174,958 174,958

Cash, due from banks and balances with National Bank of Hungary Due to their short
term nature, the fair value of cash, amounts dve from banks and balances with the National
Bank of Hungary is assumed to approximate the historical cost carrying amount.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at their fair values in the statement of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets The carrying values of equity investments and other
available-for-sale financial assets are provided in Note 8 to the financial statements. These
are based on quoted market prices, when available. In that case when equity instruments do
not have quoted market price in an active market and the variability in the range of the
reasonable fair value estimates is so great and the probabilities of the various outcomes are
so difficult to assess that the usefulness of a single estimate of fair value is negated, financial
instruments are stated at cost.

Loans and advances to other banks and Loans and advances to customers The carrying
values of Loans and advances to other banks and Loans and advances to customers are
assumed to approximate the amortised cost using the effective rate method. Under the
interest compensation system long term loans are re-prised every quarter according to market
conditions (such as costs of acquiring funds, operating spread, risk premium) thus their
carrying values approximate the fair value.
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NOTE 28. ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS AND FAIR VALUES
(CONTINUED)

Other assets/liabilities The carrying amounts of other financial assets and other financial
liabilities approximate their fair values.

Financial liabilities valued at amortised cost The fair value of amounts Loans and deposits
from other banks is assumed to approximate their carrying amount,

Derivative financial instruments Derivative financial instruments are carried at their fair
values in the statement of financial position. The fair vale of derivative financial
instruments is calculated using discounted cash flow techniques, which take into
consideration assumptions based on market data.

NOTE 28. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2011, and have not been applied in preparing these

financial statements:

Amendments to TAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets: (effective for
annual periods on or after 1 January 2012) In general a the measurement of deferred tax
assets and liabilities is based on the excepted manner of recovery or settlement of the
underlying asset or liability. The 2010 amendment provides an exception to this
measurement principle in respect of investment property measured using the fair value
model in accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property. Under the exception, the
measurement of deferred tax assets and Habilities is based on a rebuttable presumption that
the carrying amount of the investment property will be recovered entirely through sale. The
presumption can be rebutted only if the investment property is depreciable and held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the asset’s €CONnomic
benefits over the life of the asset. Therefore, the presumption cannot be rebutted in respect of
the land component of investment property as it is a non-depreciable asset. Amendments to
IAS 12 are not relevant to the Bank’s financial statements as the Bank does not have any

investment properties.
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